
Hermantown Planning & Zoning Meeting – March 19, 2024 

Hermantown’s upcoming Planning & Zoning meeting will include both remote access 
and in-person access to Council Chambers.  The remote access will be available through 
the platform, “Zoom,” which allows the public to view and participate in the meeting via 
phone or computer.  Interested parties can also choose to attend the Planning & Zoning 
meetings in person at City Hall.   

Remote access to the 7:00 pm Planning & Zoning Meeting will be available at: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89710487385?pwd=RFZYekswalBBNEluUjZXTXVQUEYydz09 

and/or by calling the number (312) 626-6799 and utilizing the meeting ID number of 
897-1048-7385 and the passcode of 122771.

A few important tips regarding the Zoom platform: 

• If your computer does not support audio, you can still watch the meeting on your
computer and call in on your phone to hear the meeting.

• Everyone has varying levels of comfort regarding remote technology, so grace
and understanding are appreciated.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89710487385?pwd=RFZYekswalBBNEluUjZXTXVQUEYydz09


PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Agenda 
March 19, 2024 

7:00 PM 

1. ROLL CALL

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
3A. February 27, 2024 regular meeting.

4. PUBLIC DISCUSSION – Public comment on any item not otherwise listed on the
agenda.

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS
5A. An application for a Final Planned Unit Development (PUD) by Jay Zierden/BMAX for a 

10 building/20 total unit twinhome/duplex development on 10 acres.  The property is 
located at 399x Stebner Road and is located in a R-3, Residential zoning district. –THIS 
ITEM HAS BEEN REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA 

5B. An application by ABDO Markethouse LLC. for a Commercial Industrial Development 
Permit for the construction of a 10,640 square foot retail/commercial building with 
associated site and stormwater improvements.  The property is approximately 2.75 acres 
in size and is located at 559x Miller Trunk Highway and is located in a C-1, Office/Light 
Industrial zoning district. 

6. CONTINUING BUSINESS

7. NEW BUSINESS

8. COMMUNICATIONS
24-31 Resignation of Dante Tomassoni from the Planning & Zoning Commission

9. COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS
Joe Peterson
Corey Kolquist
Valerie Ouellette
Beth Wentzlaff
Buckley Simmons
Matthew Fournier
John Geissler

ADJOURN 



 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
February 27, 2024 Meeting Summary 
7:00 PM 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Joe Peterson; Valerie Ouellette; Beth Wentzlaff; Matthew    
   Fournier; and Councilor John Geissler 
 
Members Absent: Corey Kolquist; Buckley Simmons; and Dante Tomassoni 
 
Others Present: Eric Johnson, Community Development Director; Mr. & Mrs. Bjork; Jim 
Atkinson, 30 W Superior St., Duluth; Anne Peterson, 5080 Maple Grove Rd.; Darren Weets, 3960 
Peyton Ln.; Dave Fulda, 4961 Greystone St.; Mark Carlson, 3988 Stebner Rd.; Steve & Kathy Ide, 
4918 Radar Rd.; Brandon Manny. 45 E Harraty Rd.; Dale & Barbara Harris, 4017 Stebner Rd.; 
Jack Dougherty, 3205 Wellington St.; Mary & Craig Monson, 3916 Stebner Rd.; Mark Wolcott, 
5652 Roses Rd.; Gage Richie, 30 W Superior St.; Dane Della Rossa, 4383 Sundby Rd.; and John 
Jamniek, JPJ Eng. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Motion made by Valerie Ouellette to approve the February 27, 2024 agenda as presented.  
Seconded by Beth Wentzlaff.  Motion carried. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion made by Valerie Ouellette to approve the January 17, 2024 minutes as presented.  
Seconded by Matthew Fournier.  Motion carried.  
 
4. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 None. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
5A. An application for a Preliminary Planned Unit Development (PUD) Amendment by Jay 
Zierden/BMAX for a 10 building/20 total unit twinhome/duplex development on 10 acres.  The 
property is located at 399x Stebner Road and is located in a R-3, Residential zoning district. 
 
Eric Johnson, Community Development Director, advised the commission that the Applicant, Jay 
Zierden/BMAX, is proposing to construct a 10 twinhome buildings (20 units total) on an existing 
10-acre lot with access to Stebner Road.  The proposed development consists of a 1050’ feet of 
public street with a 66’ right of way; a 5’ wide sidewalk on the north side of the street; a 4,800 
square foot accessory/storage building and two pickleball courts.   
 
Valerie Ouellette asked commented on the narrow spacing between each twin home. 
 
Jay Zierden, 4571 Martin Rd., Duluth, addressed that concern and stated that six weeks ago when 
he was on the agenda, his plan did have 10-foot side lots and that the pickleball court was at the 



Page 2 

end of the cul-de-sac.  On the advice of City Staff, this is plan he was asked to resubmit.  He noted 
that he would prefer the 10-foot side lots, with the pickleball court at the end, but this was the plan 
he was required to put forth. 
 
Valerie asked Eric to explain why the pickleball courts had to be put where they are proposed. 
 
Eric stated that it was required to accommodate a future right of way, the needs of the development 
today, and to potentially provide for the needs of the development in the future, i.e. right of way 
extension and to meet the needs of the applicant. i.e. number of units and garages, etc., and still 
limit wetland impacts. 
 
Matthew Fournier, asked if the pickleball courts would be open to the general public, or open to 
the residents of the development. 
 
According to Eric, the courts would be open to the public and that the roadway can accommodate 
one side parking. 
 
The following residents spoke about their concerns regarding this project. The main issues were, 
why the zoning change, initial wetland/swampland, various development within the City, loud 
excavating noise, and traffic concerns associated with the project. 
 
Barbara Harris, 4017 Stebner Rd. 
Mary Monson, 3916 Stebner Rd. 
Craig Monson, 3916 Stebner Rd. 
Natascha Ellis, 3995 Stebner Rd. 
 
Motion made by Valerie Ouellette to approve the application by Jay Zierden/BMAX for a 10 
building/20 total unit twinhome/duplex development on 10 acres.  The property is located at 399x 
Stebner Road and is located in a R-3, Residential zoning district.  Seconded by Beth Wentzlaff.  
Motion carried 4 to 0.   
 
5B. An application by JP Holding Company, LLC for a Preliminary Planned Unit Development 
for a 19 lot single family homes and 9 townhome buildings (18 units total) for a total of 37 
lots/units on a 13-acre site located at 507x Maple Grove Road.  The property is located in an R-3 
zoning district. 
 
Eric advised the commission that the Applicant, JP Holding Company, is the property owner 
associated with this 13-acre property at 5007x Maple Grove Rd., and is proposing the Arbors of 
Maple Grove project which consists of 18 single family lots and 9 twinhomes (18 units) with a 
minimum dimension of 55’ x 125’ and a minimum square footage of 6,875 square feet.  In addition, 
there are 9 twinhome buildings (18 units total) with a minimum lot size or 40’ x 113.5’ and 
minimum lot size of 4,540 square feet for each individual unit lot. 
 
In 2021, the City approved a preliminary PUD for a 103-unit, 4 story apartment building.  In 
discussions with the applicant, there is the desire to move away from the apartment and instead 
pursue a small lot single family home development along with twinhomes.  Assuming this project 
is recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City Council, the 
previously approved preliminary PUD for this property will be voided.  
 
 



Page 3 

The single-family homes are projected to be approximately 1,750 square feet with a two-car 
garage.  Each twinhome are projected to be approximately 1,300 square feet.  There may be some 
twinhome units with walk-out basements which could increase the square footage to 2,200 square 
feet.  Each twinhome will have a two-car garage as well. 
 
Matthew asked if the City had looked at a traffic flow with the Pillars of Hermantown located next 
to this project.   
 
Eric stated there was a traffic analysis had been completed in the prior PUD when the applicant 
was looking at putting in an apartment at the site.  
 
James Talago, 15th Ave., Duluth.  Mr. Talago feels the residential need is much higher in 
Hermantown than the need for apartments. 
 
Motion made by Matthew Fournier to approve the application by JP Holding Company, LLC for 
a Preliminary Planned Unit Development for a 19 lot single family homes and 9 townhome 
buildings (18 units total) for a total of 37 lots/units on a 13-acre site located at 507x Maple Grove 
Road.  Seconded by Valerie Ouellette.  Motion carried 4 to 0.   
 
5C. An application by Hage and Co. for a Special Use Permit for the construction of a 72,000 
square foot warehouse building with associated site and stormwater improvements. The property 
is located at 438x Sundby Road and is located in a BLM, Business and Light Manufacturing zoning 
district. 
 
The Applicant, Hage and Co., is proposing to construct a 72,000 square foot building for the purpose 
of providing indoor storage in an area of close proximity to the Duluth International Airport.  The 
proposed building is a 2 story building, 26 feet in height with a footprint of 120’ x 600’ (72,000 SF). 
 
The BLM, Business and Light Manufacturing zoning district identifies maximum lot coverage 
(generally) of 35%.  The code does allow for an increase in lot coverage up to 65% if there is a 
landscape plan provided with the proposal and approval by the City Council of a Special Use Permit 
(SUP). 
 
The Applicant’s engineer has provided a landscape plan which provides a mixture of deciduous and 
evergreen trees along the north and south facades of the proposed buildings.  In addition, there are 
ornamental grasses proposed along the east and west facades of the buildings. And six large deciduous 
trees proposed in various locations on the property.  The plant material along the building facades are 
planted within a rock maintenance strip along all sides of the buildings. 
 
David Bolf, City Engineer, spoke to the commission regarding this project and he and City Staff 
have approved the stormwater plan with one underground system and the other is a stormwater 
pond.   
 
There are utilities on Airbase Rd., and those utilities are City of Duluth utilities located in 
Hermantown, on easements on private properties.  Because of this, the developer has to secure an 
easement from the property owners across the street and has to extend the public utilities across 
that easement to the Airbase Rd. right of way and then cross the right of way. 
 
The following residents spoke about their concerns regarding this project. The main issues were, 
quality of life being destroyed, increased crime and traffic, property values and proposed 
landscaping associated with the project. 



Page 4 

 
 
Bradley Bjork, 4395 Sundby Rd. 
Dane Della Rossa, 4383 Sundby Rd. 
Mrs. Bjork, 4395 Sundby Rd. 
 
Eric stated that the applicant wanted a one-way traffic system throughout.  He clarified that the 
entrance would be on Sundby Rd. and the exit would be onto Airbase Rd. 
 
Applicant, Kerry Hage, 2 Merilane, Edina, is the developer for the project and he stated that it is a 
Business and Light Manufacturing zoned property, and as such, it is for the use of warehouse light 
manufacturing.  There are similar businesses across the street, so it is an area that does what it is 
intended for.  
 
Beth Wentzlaff stated that it would affect the property values somewhat because of the rest of the 
use around it.  She feels it would be more of a benefit than a detriment.   
 
Kerry also stated that he intended to build on the property to drive through it as to limit traffic flow 
outside of the structure.  He doesn’t believe there will be a tremendous amount of traffic, unlike 
the eye clinic across the street.   
 
Motion made by Valerie Ouellette to approve the application by Hage and Co. for a Special Use 
Permit for the construction of a 72,000 square foot warehouse building with associated site and 
stormwater improvements.  Seconded by Matthew Fournier.  Motion carried 4 to 0.   
 
5D. An application by Hage and Co. for a Commercial Industrial Development Permit for the 
construction of a 72,000 square foot warehouse building with associated site and stormwater 
improvements.  The property is located at 438x Sundby Road and is located in a BLM, Business 
and Light Manufacturing zoning district. 
 
Eric advised the commission that the Applicant, Hage and Co. is proposing to construct a 72,000 
square foot building for the purpose of providing indoor storage in an area of close proximity to the 
Duluth International Airport.  The proposed building is a 2 story building, 30 feet in height with a 
footprint of 120’ x 600’ (72,000 SF). 
 
Eric explained that the maximum building coverage in the BLM zoning district is 35%, however 
it can be increased up to 65% with the submission of a landscape plan and a Special Use Permit.  
The applicant has provided a landscape plan that includes a mixture of deciduous and evergreen 
plant material with the landscape being installed around the periphery of the building as well as 
along both frontages. 
 
Motion made by Matthew Fournier to approve the application by Hage and Co. for a Commercial 
Industrial Development Permit for the construction of a 72,000 square foot warehouse building 
with associated site and stormwater improvements.  Seconded by Beth Wentzlaff.  Motion carried 
4 to 0.   
 

 6.  CONTINUING BUSINESS 
  None. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
7A. A discussion on development opportunities within Stebner Park. 



Page 5 

    
John Mulder, City Administrator, spoke to the commission and advised them on how the concept 
of the Hermantown Marketplace began. 
 
Hermantown Marketplace Summary - As of December 31, 2022, 351,339 sq. ft of space has been 
added.  Over $26.7 million in private investment in buildings, does not include the increase in 
value of land.  Over $1 million increase in new tax revenue. 
 
Over the last two years, the City of Hermantown has been working with the land owner of “Stebner 
Farms” to consider how to enhance the Marketplace as a destination and center for economic 
activity. 
 
Joe Wicklund, Assistant City Administrator, discussed with the commission the history of this 
particular idea.  He stated that there have been discussions in this particular area around where in 
Marketplace area can a feasibly 100,000 sq. ft. facility that serves a little bit of health care but also 
creates opportunity for a 365-day indoor recreation site. 
 
Eric followed up with fact that sanitary sewer has been extended from Maple Grove Rd. and that 
during the mid-part of next year, the driveway would be turned into a roadway.  The next step 
would then be to change the zoning from P (Public) to Hermantown Marketplace.  A Preliminary 
and Final Plat identifying parcels and public right of way would need to be completed, as well as 
a Commercial Industrial Development Permit application and review/action would need to be 
presented to the Planning Commission. 
 
8. COMMUNICATIONS 
 None. 
 
9. COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS 

Joe Peterson – None  
Corey Kolquist – Absent  
Valerie Ouellette – None 

 Beth Wentzlaff – None 
 Buckley Simmons – Absent 

 Dante Tomassoni – Absent 
 John Geissler – updates to Comprehensive Plan and new building official 
 Matthew Fournier – None 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Valerie Ouellette to adjourn the meeting.  Seconded by Matthew  Fournier 
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm. 
 
Officiated by: 
 

 Transcribed by: 

   
 

Joe Peterson, Chairman  Mary Melde, Administrative Assistant 
 



Hermantown Planning Commission             Agenda Item:  5B 
Meeting Date: March 19, 2024               Page 1  

 
 

Hermantown Planning Commission 
Meeting Date: March 19, 2024 

Agenda Item: 5B 
 

  
 
 

5B.  559x Miller Trunk Highway – Commercial Industrial Development Permit (CIDP)   
  

Applicant:  Abdo Marketplace, LLC 
 

 Case No.:  2024-11-CIDP 
 

 Staff Contact: Eric Johnson, Community Development Director 
 

Request: Approve a Commercial Industrial Development Permit with conditions for a 
10,640 square foot retail/commercial building 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Approve a Commercial Industrial Development Permit (CIDP) in order to develop an existing 2.75 
acre site located at 559x Miller Trunk Highway.  The applicant is proposing to develop the property 
for a 10,640 square feet retail/commercial building. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 

The applicant (Abdo Marketplace, LLC) is working to develop the property in order to construct a 
10,640 square foot retail/commercial building with 35 parking spaces.  The project involves the 
construction of the building along with a driveway onto Vaux Road; a paved bituminous parking lot 
with 35 spaces and stormwater facilities.  The City ordinance requires 44 parking spaces per the floor 
area calculation however in conversation with the applicant, this would exceed what they typically 
need for their stores.  Given this, the City is able to accept a proof of parking area shown on the site 
plan, which shows how the parking lot can expand should additional spaces be needed in the future. 
 

SITE INFORMATION: 
Parcel Size:  2.75 acres 
Legal Access:  559x Miller Trunk Highway 
Wetlands:   Yes, delineated in 2023 
Existing Zoning:  C-1, Office/Light Industrial  
Airport Overlay:  Zone 3, height restrictions only 
Shoreland Overlay: N/A 
Comprehensive Plan: Commercial 

  



Hermantown Planning Commission             Agenda Item:  5B 
Meeting Date: March 19, 2024               Page 2  

 
ZONING ANALYSIS: 
 
Zoning District: C-1, Office/Light Industrial 
Type Required Proposed 
Min Lot Area 2.5 acres 2.75 acres 
Lot Width 200 350 feet along Miller Trunk Highway 
Front Yard 35 feet ROW 145 feet from Miller Trunk Highway 

right of way 
Rear Yard 40 feet 50 feet minimum 
Side Yard 10 feet 90 feet minimum  
Lot coverage 50% 8.9% 
Maximum 
Building Height 

45feet 20 feet 

Parking 44 spaces (1space/200 SF of floor 
area) 

35 with 9 proof of parking spaces 

Airport Safety Zone: 3 
Maximum 
Building 
Elevation 

1580’  1428.5’ 

   
 
Stormwater Management 
The property is 2.75 acres in size.  The proposed impervious surface consists of the 10,640 square foot 
building, 24,951 square feet of bituminous parking lot,and 2,347 square feet of concrete sidewalk for a 
total of 37,938 square feet of impervious area (31.7%). 
 
The plan proposes a series of three detention basin on site for the treatment of stormwater.  The applicant 
has submitted preliminary engineering plans locating the basins and their proposed size.  The applicant 
will need to submit final engineering plans and stormwater calculations in order to receive a MS4 
Statement of Compliance Erosion Control Permit from the City Engineer before issuance of the 
Commercial Industrial Development Permit. 
 
Access 
The property is accessed from Vaux Road by way of a new driveway entrance approximately 130 feet 
from Miller Trunk Highway.  This location was discussed with the City Engineer and Public Works 
Director with the determination that the 130 feet of Vaux Road is required to be upgraded to a 10 ton road 
and is the responsibility of the applicant to construct.  The applicant and their contractor will need to 
coordinate with MN DOT for this work. 
 
Utilities 
The project will access the existing sewermains in the Vaux Road right of way. The applicant will need to 
coordinate with the City in order to connect into the line and will have to pay the sewer connection and 
any availability fees.  The project proposes to utilize a private well for the development as there is no City 
water service in this portion of the City.  The applicant will need to submit final engineering plans to the 
City Engineer before issuance of the Commercial Industrial Development Permit as well as receive 
review and approval for the proposed well from St. Louis County. 
  



Hermantown Planning Commission             Agenda Item:  5B 
Meeting Date: March 19, 2024               Page 3  

 
Building Architecture 
The proposed building is 10,640 square feet in size and approximately 20 feet in height.  The building is 
to be constructed of wood framed building with smooth face concrete masonry units along the front with 
architectural steel panels along the sides and rear.   
 
Sign permit will need to be applied for under a separate application with the City Building Official. 
 
There will be a dumpster enclosure located within the parking lot area.  The enclosure will be constructed 
of wood material and will screen the trash area. 
 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the Commercial Industrial Development Permit based on the findings 
set forth in the Staff report, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant is seeking to construct a 10,640 square foot retail/commercial building.  The 

applicant will need to supply final site engineering and architectural plans prior to the issuance of 
the Commercial Industrial Development Permit (CIDP). 

2. The proposal meets the requirements of Section 525, “C-1, Office/Light Industrial” of the 
Hermantown Zoning Ordinance. 

3. The proposal meets the requirements of Chapter 8, “Commercial-Industrial Development Permits” 
of the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance. 

4. There are existing wetlands located on the site.  Wetland impacts are required to be reviewed and 
approved by the Hermantown Technical Evaluation prior to issuance of CIDP. 

5. Prior to issuance of the CIDP, the applicant shall submit final Stormwater and Erosion and 
Sediment Control Plans and computations as well as receive a MS4 Statement of Compliance 
from the City Engineer. 

6. Applicant shall pay any City sewer availability and connection fees. 
7. The applicant shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  
8. The applicant shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of this 

approval.   

   
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Site Location Map 
• Proposed Site Plan 
• Proposed Grading  
• Proposed Floor Plan 
• Proposed Building Elevation 
• Building Examples 



Location Map 

 

 

SITE

 

V
A

U
X

 R
O

A
D

 



S

S

MAILBOX
MAILBOX

U

S

 

H

W

Y

 

5

3

V
A

U
X

 
R

O
A

D

TP

TP

IMPROVE ROAD FROM HWY 53
TO PROPERTY LINE/END OF

DRIVEWAY. WAITING ON CONFIRMATION
FROM CITY OF HERMANTOWN FOR

REQUIRED ROAD SECTION.

PROPOSED DOLLAR
GENERAL BUILDING

140'x76'
APPROX FFE- 1428.50

LIGHTED PYLON SIGN

25
.00

'

40.00' 40
.00

'

5.00'

5.00'

40
.00

'

TOPSOIL & SOD

TOPSOIL & SOD

TOPSOIL & SEED

DO NOT SEED BOTTOM
3' OF BASIN

DO NOT SOD BOTTOM
3' OF BASIN

2' GRAVEL SHOULDER

7" CONCRETE PAVEMENT

6" CONCRETE PAVEMENT

6" CONCRETE PAVEMENT

7" CONCRETE PAVEMENT

4" CONCRETE WALK

4" CONCRETE WALK

LEGEND

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

7" CONCRETE PAVEMENT. SEE INSET A, 1/C502

6" CONCRETE PAVEMENT. SEE INSET B, 1/C502

4" CONCRETE WALK. SEE INSET C, 1/C502

CONCRETE JOINTS. SEE2/C502

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT. SEE INSET D, 1/C502

GRAVEL SHOULDER

4" TOPSOIL & SOD

4" TOPSOIL & SEED

SHEET NOTES

1. PREVENT FROM DAMAGE ALL SURFACES OUTSIDE THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS. RESTORE
ALL DISTURBED AREAS DUE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION
CONDITION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE DRAWINGS.

2. PROVIDE BITUMINOUS TACK COAT BETWEEN PROPOSES BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS AND
ALL ADJACENT CONCRETE OR BITUMINOUS SURFACES.

3. PROVIDE BITUMINOUS TACK COAT BETWEEN THE WEARING AND NON-WEARING COURSES
FOR ALL PROPOSED BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS.

4. SAW CUT ALL EXISTING PAVEMENTS ADJACENT TO PROPOSED PAVEMENTS ALONG A
NEAT LINE AND FULL SAW DEPTH. SAW CUT ALL EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENTS OR
CURB AT THE NEAREST EXISTING JOINT.

5. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE BACK OF CURB.

6. PROVIDE 1/2" EXPANSION JOINT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH DETAIL 2 ON SHEET C502, AT ALL
INTERFACES BETWEEN STRUCTURES AND ALL CONCRETE PAVEMENT OR WALKS UNLESS
NOTED OTHERWISE.

7. ONLY PLACE FILL MATERIALS ON COMPETENT, INSPECTED SUBGRADE.

SIGN KEY NOTES

SIGN TYPE SIZE NOTES
1 ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN 12"x18" COMPLY WITH MN ACESSIBILITY CODE

SECTION 502, 1-SIDED, WHITE LETTERS ON
BLUE BACKGROUND

2 STOP SIGN 30"x30" WHITE LETTERS ON RED BACKGROUND

C401

Fil
e P

ath
:..

\23
050

2\0
3 H

erm
ant

ow
n M

N\5
00 

Dra
win

gs\
Civ

il\2
305

02.
03 

C4
01 

SU
RF

AC
ING

.dw
g

701 Washington Ave. N, Ste 200 | Minneapolis, MN 55401 | 612.338.2029

THIS SQUARE APPEARS 1/2" x 1/2"
ON FULL SIZE SHEETS

9/2
9/2

02
1 4

:29
 P

M
Pl

ot 
Da

te:

CLIENT:

ABDO MARKETHOUSE,
LLC
601 MARQUETTE AVENUE NORTH
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55402

NO DATE REVISION

NO DATE ISSUED FOR

COPYRIGHT 2024 BY LHB, INC.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

P

R

E

L

I
M

I
N

A

R

Y

N

O

T

 
F

O

R

 
C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I
O

N

0

2

/
2

3

/
2

0

2

4

PROJECT NAME:

DOLLAR GENERAL

HERMANTOWN, MN
DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:
PROJ. NO:
DRAWING NO:

230502

1 2/23/2024 REGULATORY REVIEW

SURFACING & LAYOUT
PLAN

DPG
BJH



S

S

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR E-BUR

E-
BU

R

E-
BU

R

E-
BU

R

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO
-BU

R
FO

-BU
R

FO
-BU

R
FO

-BU
R

FO
-BU

R
FO

-BU
R

FO
-BU

R
FO

-BU
R

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

FO-BUR

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

MAILBOX
MAILBOX

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

E-O
H

U

S

 

H

W

Y

 

5

3

V
A

U
X

 
R

O
A

D

TP

TP

>

LEGEND

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR (5' INTERVAL)

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR (1' INTERVAL)

SPOT ELEVATION

FLOW ARROW

SWALE

ADA CRITICAL AREA
2.0% MAX IN ANY DIRECTION

ABBREVIATIONS

EO EMERGENCY OVERFLOW
FFE FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION
PC POINT OF CURVATURE
PCC POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
PRC POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
PT POINT OF TANGENT
TBC TOP BACK OF CURB
BC BACK OF CURB

SHEET NOTES

1. ALL GRADES SHOWN IN THE DRAWING ARE TO FINISH GRADE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
MAKE THE APPROPRIATE DEDUCTIONS FOR VARYING SUBGRADE ELEVATIONS.

2. ALL ELEVATIONS DESIGNATED AS TBC ARE TO THE TOP OF THE FULL HEIGHT CURB. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE THE APPROPRIATE DEDUCTIONS FOR CURB CUTS, OR RAMPS.

3. MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM ALL BUILDINGS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
MAINTAIN A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 4% IN LANDSCAPED AREAS AND 2% IN PAVED AREAS FOR
10 FEET AWAY FROM THE BUILDING UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. PREPARE SUBGRADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS. REFER TO THE SPECIFICATION FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

5. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, GRADES ADJACENT TO THE BUILDING WALL SHALL BE 6"
BELOW FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION IN LANDSCAPED AREAS.

1260.60

C301

Fil
e P

ath
:..

\23
050

2\0
3 H

erm
ant

ow
n M

N\5
00 

Dra
win

gs\
Civ

il\2
305

02.
03 

C3
01 

GR
AD

ING
.dw

g

701 Washington Ave. N, Ste 200 | Minneapolis, MN 55401 | 612.338.2029

THIS SQUARE APPEARS 1/2" x 1/2"
ON FULL SIZE SHEETS

9/2
9/2

02
1 4

:29
 P

M
Pl

ot 
Da

te:

CLIENT:

ABDO MARKETHOUSE,
LLC
601 MARQUETTE AVENUE NORTH
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55402

NO DATE REVISION

NO DATE ISSUED FOR

COPYRIGHT 2024 BY LHB, INC.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

P

R

E

L

I
M

I
N

A

R

Y

N

O

T

 
F

O

R

 
C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I
O

N

0

2

/
2

3

/
2

0

2

4

PROJECT NAME:

DOLLAR GENERAL

HERMANTOWN, MN
DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:
PROJ. NO:
DRAWING NO:

230502

1 2/23/2024 REGULATORY REVIEW

GRADING PLAN

DPG
BJH



GREETING
CARDS EC

STARBUCKS W/
LIPTON

M COKE
ENDCAP LEGO ECM BREAKFAST

FRITO EC
SNACK SHACK

M MT DEW
ENDCAP

HOUSE OF
CLEAN

CO
TT

ON
 E

C

DG
 W

EL
LB

EI
NG

 E
C

HA
ND

SE
TS

HE
AD

PH
ON

ES

PREPAID
CARDS

M COFFEE

NU
TR

IT
IO

NA
L

SN
AC

KS
 E

C

LAUNDRYPET EC READERS

HO
ST

ES
S

SN
AC

KS

SW
EE

T
GO

OD
S 

RA
CK

BE
AU

TY

64' L x 26" W x 78" H (16 SEC.)
ATTACHED TO ANCHOR BOARDS

52
' L

 x
 2

0"
 W

 x
 7

8"
 H

 (1
3 

SE
C.

)

68
' L

 x
 2

6"
 W

 x
 7

8"
 H

 (1
7 

SE
C.

)

52' L x 20" W x 78" H (13 SEC.)

16
' L

 x
 2

0"
 W

 x
 7

8"
 H

 (4
 S

EC
.)

40
' L

 x
 2

0"
 W

 x
 7

8"
 H

 (1
0 

SE
C.

)

28' L x 26" W x 78" H (7 SEC.)

8' L x 20" W x 78" H (2 SEC.)

40
' L

 x
 2

0"
 W

 x
 7

8"
 H

 (1
0 

SE
C.

)

32' x 30" x 78" (16 SEC.)

32' x 30" x 78" (16 SEC.)

8' x 30" x 60" (4 SEC.)

8' x 30" x 60" (4 SEC.)

40
' x

 3
0"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

36
' x

 3
0"

 x
 6

0"
 (1

8 
SE

C.
)

36
' x

 3
0"

 x
 6

0"
 (1

8 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 3
0"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 3
0"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 4
8"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 4
8"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 3
0"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 3
0"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

40
' x

 3
0"

 x
 7

8"
 (2

0 
SE

C.
)

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N IC

E
CR

EA
M

A
B

C
..

FR
OZ

EN
FO

OD
FR

OZ
EN

FO
OD

FR
OZ

EN
FO

OD

A

FR
OZ

EN
FO

OD

.
.

.
.

B
C

D
E

.
F

G
H

I
.

J
K

L
M

.

DA
IR

Y
DA

IR
Y

A
B

C
D

.
E

F
G

H
.

NO
N

CA
RB

CO
OL

ER
A

B
C

D
.

DR
IN

K
CO

OL
ER

A
B

C
D

.

DELI DELI

A B C.. D E F..

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

4 
DO

OR
HU

SS
M

AN
N

8'
 P

RO
DU

CE

HU
SS

M
AN

N
8'

8'
 F

RE
SH

 M
EA

TS

HU
SS

M
AN

N
8'

4'
 x

 3
6"

 x
 4

8"
 (2

 S
EC

.)

4'
 P

RO
DU

CE

3 DOOR
HUSSMANN

3 DOOR
HUSSMANN

FR
OZ

EN
SI

NG
LE

 S
ER

VE
NE

ST
LE

HY
DR

AT
IO

N
CO

OL
ER

HERSHEY
RACK

4' TOBACCO

Z TIER TABLE 2
(NCI)

Z TIER TABLE 1
(SEASONAL)

60" L x 20" W x 78" H (2 SEC.)

8' L x 20" W x 78" H (2 SEC.)

60" L x 20" W x 78" H (2 SEC.)

BATH SPA

BEAUTY BAR

THAW
& SELL

THAW
& SELL

P30

S20

24"

30" IMPULSE
CANDY

30" IMPULSE
CANDY

60" L x 20" W x 78" H (2 SEC.) 60" L x 20" W x 78" H (2 SEC.)

HBA CART

BREAD
RACKFR

IT
O 

2
FO

R
$1

.5
0

RE
US

AB
LE

BA
GS

HAND
SANITIZER
STATION

DG
PICKUP

CLEARANCE
CART

WIND
CHIMES

UMBRELLAS LOAD THE
LOBBY

32"

32
"

ENDCAP COOLER 

CASHWRAP
(WITH COOLER)

MEDIUM TEMP CASES

WALK-IN FREEZER

WALK-IN COOLER

ME
DI

UM
 TE

MP
 C

AS
E

LO
W

 TE
MP

 C
AS

E

ENDCAP COOLER 

IC
E 

CR
EA

M 
FR

EE
ZR

OPEN AIR COOLER -
PRODUCE

OPEN
AIR COOLER
- MEATS

FREE STANDING
COOLERS

ENDCAP COOLER 

24"

30" IMPULSE
CANDY

30" IMPULSE
CANDY

B
F1.0

NOTE: FRONT
CHECKOUT COUNTER
TO BE PROVIDED BY
DOLLAR GENERAL AND
INSTALLED AT DOLLAR
GENERAL'S DIRECTION.
COUNTERS SHALL
INCLUDE A PORTION OF
AT LEAST 36" IN LENGTH
WHICH IS NO MORE
THEN 34" ABOVE THE
FINISH FLOOR.
COUNTERS SHALL BE
ON AN ACCESSIBLE
ROUTE.

B - ELEVATION

TRANSACTION COUNTER TRANSACTION COUNTERS

2'-
9"

CHECK
WRITING
SURFACE

CONSULTANTS

Lea E. Kangas
18601 152nd AVE N

DAYTON, MN 55327
763-428-5870

INSIDE OUTSIDE
ARCHITECTURE, INC.

ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR DESIGN

CONTENTS

PROJECT

* COPYRIGHT 2024 ©*
This plan is copyrighted and shall be used

only for the building shown and
is not to be copied or reproduced without written
permission from Inside Outside Architecture, Inc.

MN Registration # 26203
Date 02-23-2024 city CID submittal 

REVISIONS:

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this plan,
specification or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and
that I am a duly Licensed Professional
Architect under the laws of the State of
Minnesota.

PRELIMINARY NOT
FOR CONSTRUCTION

 #
30

77
5

PR
OT

OT
YP

E 
C 

- D
GM

M
He

rm
an

to
wn

, M
N 

55
81

0

Becklin & Whitney
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

139 1st Ave E, Ste 100,
P.O. Box 471

Cambridge, MN 55008
Ph: 763-689-5631 Fax:

763-552-5631

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

BRANDON POUND
763-645-1413

OWNER
AMH MALMO, LLC

PAUL ABDO
612-382-0066

1
 F1

FIXTURE PLAN-DGMM
1/8" = 1'-0"

F1

FIXTURE
PLAN

A
 F1

SERVICE COUNTER DETAILS
1/4" = 1'-0"



9

11

15

1 25

8

9

117

A5
1

128 8
8

8 8 812 12

10 20 8

4

4

20
'-0

"

EQ. EQ. EQ. EQ. EQ.

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"

14
'-0

"

3/8:1223

1

10

12

7

12

17

14

12

57 10

13
1

23

12

9
9

11

8

22

22

14
'-0

"

16

16
16

12'-0" 12'-0"

 2'
-0"

MA
X.

4'-
0"

4'-
0"

24

24

16

4 444

5

5

16

FINISHES

GUTTERS
DOWN SPOUTS
SIDE AND REAR METAL WALL PANELS & TRIM,
RECEIVING & EMERGENCY EXIT DOORS
(EXTERIOR OF DOORS TO BE PAINTED, REFER TO
DOOR SCHEDULE)

EXTERIOR FINISHES ARE TO MATCH OR BE EQUAL
TO VP METAL BUILDING SYSTEM'S FINISH
SELECTION UNLESSS AUTHORITY HAVING
JURISDICTION DOES NOT ALLOW.

ARCHITECTURAL BLOCK AT BUILDING FACADE TO BE
PRE-FINISHED OR PAINTED (2 COATS - LOXON XP
MASONRY COATING A24W400 SERIES) TO MATCH THE
METAL WALL PANEL.

BUILDING FASCIA WALL, PARAPET OVER
ENTRANCE, AND CANOPY
STOREFRONT SYSTEM

FLAT METAL SOFFIT AT STOREFRONT
VESTIBULE.

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF PANELS

PEMB
VENDOR

ATTN: RANDY SPEARS 205-907-8176

NUCOR BUILDING SYSTEMS

ATTN: BOB BARRY 315-622-4440

STAR BUILDING SYSTEMS

ATTN: JEFF HORN 866-664-8899

VP BUILDINGS

CO
O

L 
DA

RK
BR

O
NZ

E

BR
O

NZ
E

CO
O

L 
CO

TT
O

N

W
HI

TE

CO
O

L 
EG

YP
TI

AN

W
HI

TE

M
ED

IU
M

 B
RO

NZ
E

KY
NA

R 
50

0

BR
O

NZ
E

PO
LA

R 
W

HI
TE

LI
G

HT
 S

TO
NE

G
AL

VA
LU

M
E

PO
LA

R 
W

HI
TE

BR
O

NZ
E

LI
G

HT
 S

TO
NE

G
AL

VA
LU

M
E

G
AL

VA
LU

M
E

M
ED

IU
M

 B
RO

NZ
E

KY
NA

R 
50

0

BIG BEE STEEL BUILDINGS

ATTN: KEVIN BUSLER 800-633-3378

G
AL

VA
LU

M
E

PO
LA

R 
W

HI
TE

SA
ND

ST
O

NE

BU
RN

IS
HE

D 
SL

AT
E

BR
O

NZ
E

INTERIOR SALES AND RECEIVING FLOOR LINER
PANELS

CHIEF BUILDINGS

ATTN: ERIN SULLIVAN 800-845-1767

G
AL

VA
LU

M
E

PO
LA

R 
W

HI
TE

PA
RC

HM
EN

T

AN
TI

Q
UE

 B
RO

NZ
E

BR
O

NZ
E

PREFERRED COLORS IF
ALTERNATE EXTERIOR
MATERIALS ARE USED INSTEAD
OF METAL PANELS

G
AL

VA
LU

M
E

W
HI

TE
 B

Y 
PE

M
B

M
AN

UF
AC

TU
RE

R

SH
ER

W
IN

 W
IL

LI
AM

S

#7
03

7 
- "

BA
LA

NC
ED

BE
IG

E"
SH

ER
W

IN
 W

IL
LI

AM
S

#7
04

1 
-

"V
AN

 D
YK

E"
 B

RO
W

N
BR

O
NZ

E

14'-10" 30'-0" 30'-0" 14'-10"

EQ. EQ.

8'-10" 27'-6"

6'-4"

8

25
25

3 NOT USED.

FINISH GRADE TO BE A MINIMUM OF 6" BELOW FINISHED FLOOR
LEVEL AT ALL NONPAVED AREAS.

PROVIDE SNOW GUARDS ON ROOF.

OUTSIDE AIR TEMP. SENSOR MOUNTED OVER RECEIVING DOOR
AT 9'-0" A.F.F.

HVAC UNITS MOUNTED ON ROOF. REFER TO MECHANICAL SHEET
M1 FOR MORE INFORMATION.

NOT USED.

DOOR BUZZER. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWING E1 FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

VENT FOR BATHROOM EXHAUST. REFER TO MECHANICAL
DRAWING M1 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

PRE-FINISHED METAL WALL PANELS FOR SIDE AND REAR.
PROVIDE TAMPER-RESISTANT FASTENERS FOR BOTTOM 8'-0".

8" SMOOTH FACE CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT.

GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT - SEE FINISH SCHEDULE FOR COLOR.

NOT USED.

WALL PACK. REFER TO ELEC. DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFO.
12'-0" HEIGHT O.C. TO J-BOX.

MINIMUM EAVE HEIGHT IS 14'-0" A.F.F.

22

21

20

19

18

17

PRE-FINISHED METAL WALL PANELS FOR FASCIA AND PARAPET
OVER ENTRANCE, REVERSE RIB PROFILE.

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF.

16

15

14

12

13

11

10

TRIM - SEE FINISH SCHEDULE FOR COLOR.

6

8

9

7

5

4

NOT USED.

SIGN FURNISHED AND INSTALLED BY DOLLAR GENERAL CORP.
WITH CIRCUIT AS NOTED ON ELECTRICAL PLAN. SIGN TO BE
CENTERED ON FRONT OF BUILDING. CONTRACTOR IS TO
PROVIDE ADEQUATE BLOCKING AS REQUIRED BY SIGN
MANUFACTURER TO SUPPORT SIGN WEIGHT OF UP TO 1,400 LBS.
EXTERIOR CANOPY SIGN SHALL BE SUPPORTED BY THE FACE OF
CANOPY. CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE STRUCTURE
TO SUPPORT SIGN. COORDINATE THE PROPER SIGNAGE TO BE
USED WITH DOLLAR GENERAL.

2

1

ELEVATION KEYED NOTES

PARAPET BEYOND.

NOT USED.23

GUTTER LEAF GUARDS IF WITHIN 25'-0" OF A TREE.

24

25

PLYWOOD BLOCKING BEHIND METAL PANELS FOR SIGNAGE.
7'-0"X24'-0" FOR ALL DGMM LAYOUTS.

1A

WALL PACK. REFER TO ELEC. DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFO.
16'-0" HEIGHT O.C. TO J-BOX.

1/2" DIAMETER x 6" LONG STEEL EYE BOLTS (CLOSED) WITH 1"
DIAMETER OPENINGS. DRILL AND EPOXY INTO BLOCK WALL. 4
BOLTS TO BE LOCATED AS SHOWN EACH SIDE OF ENTRY. TOTAL
OF 8 BOLTS.

NOT USED.

5
14'-8"

CONSULTANTS

Lea E. Kangas
18601 152nd AVE N

DAYTON, MN 55327
763-428-5870

INSIDE OUTSIDE
ARCHITECTURE, INC.

ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR DESIGN

CONTENTS

PROJECT

* COPYRIGHT 2024 ©*
This plan is copyrighted and shall be used

only for the building shown and
is not to be copied or reproduced without written
permission from Inside Outside Architecture, Inc.

MN Registration # 26203
Date 02-23-2024 city CID submittal 

REVISIONS:

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this plan,
specification or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and
that I am a duly Licensed Professional
Architect under the laws of the State of
Minnesota.

PRELIMINARY NOT
FOR CONSTRUCTION

 #
30

77
5

PR
OT

OT
YP

E 
C 

- D
GM

M
He

rm
an

to
wn

, M
N 

55
81

0

Becklin & Whitney
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

139 1st Ave E, Ste 100,
P.O. Box 471

Cambridge, MN 55008
Ph: 763-689-5631 Fax:

763-552-5631

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

BRANDON POUND
763-645-1413

OWNER
AMH MALMO, LLC

PAUL ABDO
612-382-0066

2
A2

REAR ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"

1
A2

FRONT ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"

3
A2

SIDE ELEVATION (NO ACCESS)
1/8" = 1'-0"

4
A2

SIDE ELEVATION (TRUCK SIDE)
1/8" = 1'-0"

A2

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS








	AGENDA COVER SHEET
	March 19, 2024 Agenda
	Agenda
	1. ROLL CALL
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. PUBLIC DISCUSSION – Public comment on any item not otherwise listed on the  agenda.
	7. NEW BUSINESS
	8. COMMUNICATIONS
	24-31 Resignation of Dante Tomassoni from the Planning & Zoning Commission
	9. COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS


	February 27 2024 Minutes
	1. ROLL CALL
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	Motion made by Valerie Ouellette to approve the January 17, 2024 minutes as presented.  Seconded by Matthew Fournier.  Motion carried.
	4. PUBLIC DISCUSSION

	5B
	03192024 CIDP - Abdo Marketplace
	Location Map
	Site Plan
	Grading Plan
	Floor Plan
	Building Elevation - Line Drawing
	Building Example 1
	Building Example 2

	Logged Correspondence 24-31

